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Reporl on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone flnancial statements of Kuttukaran Cars Private
Limited ("the Company") which comprises the []alance Sheer as ar 3 I., March 2024. the Sratemenr

of Profit and Loss. statement of changes in Equily and statement of cash flows for the year then

ended. and notes to tlte tlnancial statements. including a summary of material accounting policies and

othcr !'\planatorv inlbrnation.

ln our opiniott and lo Ih(' besl ol our inlirrnralion .rntl accordinq to the e\planations givcn to us. the

albresaid startdalone llnancial statcments givc thc intbrnration required by the Act in the manner so

required and give a true and thir vieiv in conlbrmitr with the accounting principles generally accepted

in India. ol the state of atfairs ol' the Cornpanr as at I I '' March 2024. and LOSS, Changes in Equity

and its cash f)ows fbr the year ended on that darc.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance u ith the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specilied under section

143( l0) ol the Compan ies Act. 201 3. Our respons ibilities under those Standards are funher described

in the Auditor's Responsibi lit ies tbr the Audit ofthe Financial Statements section ofour report. We

are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute oi
Chartered Accountants of lndia together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the tlnancial statements under the provisions ol lhc Comprrries nct. 2013 and the Rules thereunder"

and lc havc tirllillcd our othcr clhical rcsponsibilitics in accorclrrrcc \\ith tlrcse rcquirernenls and the

Code ol'lrthics. Wc belicre thrl thc lutlit l clcnec rrc lrarc obtaincd is suf'licient and rppropriatc to

provide a basis lbr our opinion.
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lnformation other than the F'inancial Slatements and Auditors Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the lnformation olher than the tinancial

statements and auditors report thereon. l'he said informalion comprises the information included in

lhe Directon Report (Other information). but does not include the financial statements and our audit

repon thereon. 'Ihc. Othcr Intorrnation is e\pcctcd to be nrade available to us after the date of this

auditors'report

Our opinion on the tinancial statements does not cover the other intbrmation and we will not express

any form ofassurance conclusion thereon.

ln connection with our audit ol'the llnancial statements, our responsibility is to read the other

intbrmation idenrified above when it become,s available, and. in doing so. consider whether lhe other

inlormation is materially inconsistent with the flnancial statements or our knowledge obtained in the

audit. otherwise appear to be materially misstated

When we read the other information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we

are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for

the St, ndalone Financial Stalements

The Cornpanl's Board ol'I)ircctors is rcsponsiblc lor thc rlatl!'rs stated in section 134(5) olthe

Companies Act. 2013 (-thc Acf') with rcspecr lo thc preparation ol'these standalone financial

statements that give a true and thir view ol'thc linancial position. financial performance and cash

flows of the Companf in accordance $ith tht itccounting principles generally accepted in lndia.

including the accounring Srandards specitied under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also

includes maintenance ofadequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions ofthe Act for

safeguarding of the assets of the Company and tbr prevcnting and detecting tiauds and other

inegularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and

estimates that are reasonable and prudent: and design. implementation and maintenance of adequate

intemal financial controls. that were operating etlectively tbr ensuring the accuracy and completeness

ofthe accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation ofthe financial statement that

give a true and lair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud Or enor.

ln preparing the financial statements. manaS.cmenl is responsible tbr assessing the Company's ability

to continue as a going conCern. disclosing. as applicable. lnalte'rs related to going concem and using

the going conccrn basis ol-accounling unless rnanagcnrent eitlrer intends lo liquidate the Company or

to cease operations. or has no rcalistic altcrnatirt'but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the comPany's financial reporting

process,
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Auditor's Responsibilitv for the Audil ol'tht F inancial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurancc about whether the financial statements as a whole

are free fiom material misstatement. whether duc to tiaud or enor. and to issue an auditor's repon

that includes our opinion. Reasonable assuranc!' is a high level of assurance. but is not a guaranlee

that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always delect a material misstatement when iI

exists. Misslalements can arise lrom liaud or error and are considered material if, individually or in

the aggregale, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken

on the basis ofthese financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs. rve excrcise professional judgment and maintain

profbssional skepticisrn throughout thc audit. Wc al50:

Identily and assess the risks ol'material nrisstaterncnl ol'thc'linancial statements. rahether due to

fraud or enor, design and perlbrm audit proce'dures responsive to those risks. and obtain audit

evidence that is sutlicient and appropriate to provide a basis tbr our opinion. The risk of not

detecting a material misslatement resulting fiom liaud is higher than for one resulting lrom

error. as fraud may involve collusion. tbrgery. intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the

override of intemal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order lo design audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circunrslances. Under section 143(3Xi) ofthe Companies

Act, 2013. we are also responsible tbr expressing our opinion on whether the company has

adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such

controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness olaccounling policics used and the reasonableness of accounting

estimatcs and relatcd disclosurcs madc bl ntanagemcnt.

Conclude on the appropriateness ol' management's use ol'the going concern basis of accounting

and, based on the audit evidence obtainr'd. wh!'ther a matcrial uncertainty exisls related to events

or conditions that may cast signiticant doubt on the Colnpany's ability to continue as a going

concern. lf we conclude that a material unccnainty exists. we are required to draw atlention in

our auditor's repon to lhe related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures

are inadequate. to modily our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained

up to the date ol our auditor's repon. However, t'uture events or conditions may cause the

Company to cease to continue as a going conccrn.

Evaluale the overall presentation. structure and content ollhe financial statements, including the

disclosures, and whether the tlnancial statements represent the underlying transactions and

evenls in a manner that achieves thir presentation.

We communicate with those chargcd u ith [ovdn]ancc rcgarding. among other matters' the planned

scope and riming ot'the audit and signilicant ludit tindings. including any signilicant detlciencies in

internal control that we identity during our aLrdit.
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We also provide those charged with govemance with a statement that we have complied with

relevant ethical requirements regarding independence. and to communicale wilh them all

relationships and other matlcrs thal rrar rcrsonablr br"' thoLrght to bear on our independence. and

where appl icable. relatc'd sall'guards.

Reporl on Other Legal and llegulatory l{equirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order. 2020 ("the Order"), issued by the

Central Government of lndia in terms ol sub-section ( I I ) of section 143 of the Companies Acl,

2013. we give in the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 ofthe

Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) olthe Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our

knowledge and beliefwere necessary lbr the purposes ofour audit.

b. ln our opinion. proper books ol'accoLml as rcquircd br lau have been kept b1- the Company so lar

as it appears tiom our cxanrination ol'thosc b(x)ks e\cepl li)r thc rnatters stated in paragraph 2(iXt)

below on reponing under Rulc I l(g).

c. The Balance Sheet. the Statcment of Prolit and l-oss. Statement of Changes in Equity and the

Cash Flow Statement dealt rvith by this Rcpon are in agreement with the books ofaccount.

d. ln our opinion. the atbresaid standalone tlnancial statements comply with the Accounting

Standards specified under Section 133 ol'the Act, read with Rule 7 ofthe Companies (Accounts)

Rules, 2014.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors taken on record by the

Board of Directors, none ol the directors is disqualified as on 3l'' March 2024 from being

appointed as a director in terms ofSection 164(2)oftheAct.

l'. With respect to the adequac) ol'thc inlernal linancial controls over flnancial reporting of the

Company and the operating cll'cctivcncss ol'such controls. rettr our separale Repon in Annexure

g. No managerial remuneration was paid during thc- year and hence reponing on compliance with the

provisions ofseclion 197 read rvith schedule V to the act is not applicable.

h. The remarks relating to the maintcnance ot'accounts and other matters connected therewith are as

stated in the paragraph 2(b) above on reponing under Section I43(3Xb) and paragraph 2(i)(0

below on reporting under Rule I l(g).

With respect Io the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule

ll of the Companies (Audit and Auditorsl Rules,2014, in our opinion and to the best ofour

information and according to the explanalions given to us:



a 1'he Cornpanl'has no pending litigations having irnpact on its tlnancial posilion

c

b. 1'he Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for

which there were any material tbreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which rvere required to be transfened to the lnvestor Education

and Protection Fund by the Companr.

d. (i) The management, as explained in Note No.27-lv(a) of the financial statements, has

represented that, Io the best of it's knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the

notes to the accounts. no t'unds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from

borrowed t'unds or share pretniunr or any other sourcc's or kind of'funds) by the company

to or in any other person(s) or cntit](ics). including tbreign entities ("lntermediaries").

with the undcrstanding. rrhethcr reeorclcd itt triting or othcrwise. that the Intermediary

shall. whether. directly or indirectly lcnd or invest in other persons or entities identified in

any manner whatsoever by or on behall'ofthe company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or

provide any Buarantee. security or the Iike on behallolthe Ultimate Beneficiaries:

(ii) The management. as explained in Note 27-lV(b)of the financial statements. has

represented. that, to the best ol'il's knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the

notes to the accounts. no lunds have been received by the company from any person(s) or

entity(ies). including tbreign entities ("Funding Panies"), with lhe understanding, whether

recorded in writing or otherrvise. that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly,

lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on

behalfofthe Funding Pany ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security

or the like on behalfol'lhe Ultimatc Bcnellciariesl and

(iii) Based on such audit procedLrrcs. lhat rve considcrcd reasonable and appropriate in the

circumstances. nothing has conrc to our nolice that has caused us to believe that the

represenlations under sub-clausc (i)and (ii)conlain any material mis-statement.

e. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and hence reporting

undcr this clause is not applicable.

f. Based on our examination which included test checks. the company, has used accounting

software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail

(edit log) facility except in respect of payroll records wherein the software did not have

the audit trail feature enabled throughout the year. The audit trail fhcility has been

operating in all other accounting sotiware throughout the year for all relevant transactions

recorded in such software. Funher. tbr the periods where audit trail (edit log) facility was

enabled and operated. rvc did nol cornc across any instance of audit trail feature being

tampered rvith

For R.G.N. PRTCE & CO.
Chartered Aacountantt

qrrrtlrurrr nt
P.M. VEERAMANI
Pa.lner
M. tlo, 23933, FR. t{o.0027855



ANNI]XURI]

i) Fixed Assets

(a) (A) The Company has maintained records shorving particulars of Property. Plant and Equipment

including quantitative details and situation

( B) The Company has maintained proper records showing lull particulars of intangible assets.

(b) These Propenies, Plant and Equipments have been physically verified by the management at

reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such physical

verification.

(c) The Company does not own anf inrnrovable' propenies other than improvemenls to leasehold

bu ildings.

(d) The company has not revalued its Propertl. I)lant and Equipments during the year

(e) As per the information and explanations f'urnished to us. no proceedings have been initiated or

are pending against the company lor holding any benami property under the Benami

Transactions ( Prohibition) Act. I988 (.15 ol' 1988) and rules made thereunder.

ii) lnventories

(a) The inventories have been physicalll verilicd by the management during the year at reasonable

intervals and in our opinion the coverage and proccdure ol'sLrch verillcation by the management

is appropriate. fhe discrepancies noliced on phlsical vcrilication 01'stock were nol material

having regard to the size o,'tlrL'operation ol'lh!'compan).

(b) I'he company has been sanctioned /rensred rorking capital lirrits in excess offive crore rupees.

in aggregate. tionr banks or t'inancial institutions on the basis ofsecurity ofcurrent assets during

the year. ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations fumished to us, the

quarlerly retums or statements tiled by the company with such banks or financial inslitutions are

in agreemenl with the books ofaccount ofthe Company.

iii) ln vest ments/Loans/Ad va nces and Cuarantees

During the year, the company has not made any investments in or provided any guarantee or security

or granted any loans or advances in the nature ol loans. secured or unsecured. to companies, firms.

Limited Liability Pannerships or any othcr partics other than those given in the normal course of
business. Accordingll. nonc ol'thc subclauscs Lrnticr this hcading are applicable,

+
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iv) Cornoliance u ith Sec 185 and Sec 186

In our opinion and according to the inlbmration and csplanations given lo us. the company had not

granted any loans to parlies to whom provisions of Sec I 85 applies and consequently clauses relating

to terms and conditions ofloan. payment olintcrest and repayment ofprincipal and status ofoverdue

are not applicable.

ln our opinion and according to the intbrmation and explanations given to us, the company has not

made any investments, guarantees during the ycar to which the provisions of Seclion 185 and 186 of
the Companies Act 2013 applies.

v) Fixcd Deposits

ln our opinion and according to the intbrnration and explanations given to us, the company has nol

accepted any deposits or amounts deemed to be deposits to which the provisions of Section 73 to 76

ofthe Companies Act.20l3 and rules made there under applies.

vi) Cost Records

In our opinion and according to the inlbrnration and explanalions given to us. the Central

Covc'rnment has not prr'scribr'd tlrr' nlainl!'nancc ol'cost records under Section 148(l) of the

Companies Act. 20I l. lor the compan) .

(a) The company was generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed

statutory dues towards Providenl Fund. Ernployees State lnsurance, Income Tax. Goods &

Scrvice l-ax. duty of customs. cess and other statutory dues, wherever applicable. There were no

arrears ol undisputed stalulory dues as on thc last day of the financial year for a period of more

than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the records of the companl. thcr!' wcre no disputed slatulory dues are oulstanding

as on the dale of balance sheet.

viii) U ndisclosc-d lnconre

ln our opinion and according to lhr' inlbnnalion and crplanations given to us, there are no

transactions which are not recorded in the books oi account which have been surrendered or

disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessmcnts under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

ix) ReDayment of Loans

(a) In our opinion and according to the inlbrmation and explanations given to us, the company has

not dethuhed in repayment olinterest and principal to any lender.

vii) Statutorv Dues



(b) Based on the inlbrmation and explanations given to us. the company is not declared wilt'ul

defaulter by any bank or financial institution or any other lender;

(c) In our opinion and according to the inlormation and explanations given to us, the company has

utilized the money obtained by way of terrn loans during the year for the purposes for which

they were obtained.

(d) According to the intbnnation and c'xplarrations givcn to r-rs. and the procedures performed by us,

and on an overall examination ot'the tinancial statenrents ol the cornpany, we reporl that no

t'unds raised on shon-term basis have bcen used lbr long-ternr purposes by the company.

(e) According to the inlormation and explanations givcn to us and on an overall examination ofthe

tlnancial statements ol thc company. \\c' rcpofl that the company has nol taken any funds from

any entity or person on account ol'or to mcct the obligations ol its subsidiaries, associates or

joint ventures

(fl According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we

repon that the company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securilies held in

its subsidiaries. joint ventures or associate cornpanies.

x) Apolication of lun ds raised through oublic olllr

(a) The company has not raised any t'unds through pLrblic oli'er during thc year

(b) The company has not raised any t'unds during thc lear by way of preferential allotment or

private placement ofshares or convenibl!'debcnturcs (t'ully. parliall) or oplionally convenible).

xi) Frauds

(a) According to lhe information and explanations given to us. no fraud. on or by the company, has

been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) As no fraud, on or by the company. has been noticed or reponed during the year, reponing under

this clause as per seclion 143( I 2) is not applicable.

(c) As represented to us by the manaBement. there are no whistle blower complaints received by the

company during the year.

xii) Nidhi Cornpanr

ln our opinion and according to the inlbrmation arrcl cxplanations given to us. the company is not a

nidhi company and hence this clause in not applicablc to the company.



riii) Ilelated Pan) l ransactions

ln our opinion and according to tlle inlbnnation and erplanations given to us. all transactions with the

related parties are in compliancc with Sectjon 188 o1'the Companies Act, 2013 wherever applicable

and the details lrave been discloscd irr thc llnancial statements as required by the applicable

accounting standards.

Being a wholly owned subsidiary, the company is not required to constitute an Audit Committee as

per seclion 177 of the Companies Act. 2013 read with Rule 4(2) of Companies (Appointment and

Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 as amended.

riv ) lnternal Audit

(a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the company is not required to have an intemal

audit system as per provisions of the Cornpanies Act 20 I 3.

(b) Since the company is not rcquired t() ha\c an intcrnal audit s\stem as per provisions ol

Companies AcI 2013. reponing under this clause on rvhether the internal audit report was

considered by the statutory auditor is not applicablc.

xv) Non Cash'fransactions

As explained to us, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or

other persons during the year.

The company is not required to be registered under section 45-lA ol the Reserve Bank of lndia Act,

1934 and hence this clause is not applicable to lhe Company.

xvii) Cash Losses

The company has not incurred cash losscs in the tinancial year and in the immediately preceding

fi nancial vear.

xviii) Resisn ion of Auditor

There has been no resignation ofthe slatutory auditors during the year and accordingly this clause is

not applicable.

xix)Coi Concern

According to the inlbrma(ion and explanalions given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,

ageing and expected dates of realiza(ion of financial assels and payment of financial liabilities, other

information accompanying the tlnancial statcments. our knorvledge of the Board of Directors and

management plans explained in detail vidc Notc No, 28 and based on our examination of lhe

rvi) Resistrat ion rvith RBI



evidence supporling the assumptions, nothing has come to our afienlion, which causes us to believe

that any material uncertainty exists as on the dare ol'the audit report that company is not capable ol
meeling its liabilities existing al the date of balance sheet as and when they lall due within a period of
one year fiom the balance sheet date. We, horvcvcr. statr. that this is not an assurance as to the ffiure

viability ofthe company. We t'urther state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date olthe

audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within

a period of one year lrom the balance sheet dal.e. *ill gct discharged by the company as and when

they thll due.

xx) Coroorate Social Res D()t'l s ibilit

The company was not required to spend an) amount towards CSR and hence reporting under this

clause is not applicable.

xxi) Observations by comDonent auditors

The Company does not have any subsidiary companies and hence reporting under this clause

regarding qualilications or adverse remarks by the auditors in the Companies (Auditor's Reporl)

Order repons ofsubsidiary companies is not applicable.

For R.G.N. pRICE & CO.
Lnarte.ed Aaaountant5

4.t rr-r,--,
P. M. VEE RAMANI
Partner
M. o. 23933, Fi. o. 0O27tSs



ANNEXURE A TO THE INDI]PENI)EN1',\I.DITOR'S REPOR'T O}'EVEN DATE ON THE

STANDALONE FINANCIAI, STATEM[:NI'S ()}' KUT'TUKARAN CARS PRIVATE

LIMITED.

Report on the lnternal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub.section 3 of Section 143 of

the Companies Act, 20lJ ("the Act")

We have audited the intemal financial controls over tlnancial reporting ol Kuttukaran Cars Private

Limited ("the Company") as oi March 31.2014 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone

financial statements ofthe Company for the year ended on that date.

The Company's ntanagemenr is responsiblc tbr establishing and rnaintaining internal financial

controls based on "thc inrernal control ovcr linancial rcponing criteria established by the Company

considering the essential conrponents ol'intcrnal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of

lnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reponing issued bl the Instilule ofChartered Accountants

of India". These responsibiliries include the design. implementation and maintenance of adequate

intemal financial controls that were operating ett-ectively lbr ensuring the orderly and efficient

conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the

prevention and delection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting

records. and the timely preparalion ofreliable linancial intbrnration. as required under the Companies

Act. 2013.

Auditors' Responsibilitl

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on lhe Company's internal tlnancial controls over financial

reponing based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit

ol Intc.rnal Financial Controls Ovcr lrinancial Rc.poning lthc 'Cuidancc Note") and the Standards on

Auditing. issucd b_r' lCAl and dcenrcd ro hc prcscribcd undcr seclion 143( l0) ol'thc Companies Act.

2013, to the extent applicable to an audit ol'intcrnal llnancial controls. both applicable to an audit of

lnternal Financial Controls and. both issued by the Institute of Chanered Accountants of lndia. Those

Standards and the Cuidance Note require thal we comply with ethical requirements and plan and

perform the audil to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequale internal financial controls

over financial reponing was established and rnaintained and if such controls operated effectively in

all material respects.

Our audit involves pertbrming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal

financial controls system over tinancial reporting and their operating etIectiveness. Our audit of

internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of intemal

financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and

testing and evalualing the design and operating etlcctiveness of intemal control based on the assessed

risk. Thc procedures sc.lected dcpend on the auditor's .ir.rdgement. including the assessment of the

risks ofrnaterial misstillL'ment ol the llnancial stittcrrrcrlls. whcther duc to liaud or error.

Management's Responsibilitl- for lnternal Iinancial Controls



We believe rhat the audit evidence we have obtained is suflicient and appropriate to provide a basis

for our audit opinion on the Company's intemal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of lnternal l'inancial Controls ()rcr Financial Rcporting

A company's internal linancial control ovcr linancial reporting is a process designed to provide

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability ol' tlnancial reporting and the preparation of financial

slatements for external purposes in accordancc uith generally accepted accounting principles. A

company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures

that

l) pertain to the maintenance of records that. in reasonable detail. accuralely and fairly reflect the

rransactions and dispositions ofthe assets ot'the company;

2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of

flnancial sratements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that

receipts and expenditures ofthe company are being made only in accordance with authorisations

of management and directors of tlre conparrl: and

3) provide reasonablc assuralrce rcgarding prcvL'ntion or timcl) detection ol unauthorised

acquisition. use. or disposition ol'lhc conrpanl's assets that could havc a material el'tect on the

financial statements.

lnhercnt t,imilations of lnlcrnal Financial (-'ontrols Ovt'r [-inancial Reporting

Opinion

ln our opinion. the Compan\ has. in all rnalcrial rc'spccts. an adcquate internal flnancial controls

system over Iinancial rcporting and such intcrnal linancial controls ov!'r tinancial reponing were

operating effectively as at March 31. 2024. based on "thc' internal control over tlnancial reponing

criteria established b)' the Conrpan)-, corrsidering thc cssential componenls ol intemal control stated in

the Cuidance Note on Audit of lnternal [:inancial Controls Over Financial Reponing issued by the

lnstitute of Chartered Accountanls ofIndia".

Because of the inherent limitations of internal tlnancial controls over financial reporting, including

the possibility ofcollusion or improper managcment override ofcontrols, material misstatements due

to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also. projections of any evaluation of the intemal

llnancial controls over financial reponing to tuture periods are subject to the risk that the intemal

financial control over financial reporting rray become inadequate because of changes in conditions.

or that lhe degree olcompliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For R.G.N. PRICE & CO.
Cha.tered Accountatlti

@
P.M. VEERAMANI 

---Pa rtn ar
M. Io.23933, FR. l{o. O027tSS



KUTTUI(ARAN CARS PRIVATE LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS PRABAL MOTORS PRIVATE LIMITED). KOCHI - 25

ESTIMATED STATEMENT OF TOTAL INCOME FOR THE ASSESSMONT YEAR 202{-25

FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 3T.03.2024 PAN AAGCP26'IB

STATUS-COMPAAIY

INCOME FRONI I]T]SINESS

loss as per Statement of Profit and [.ss (1,40,69,02E)

Add: Inadmissibles

Depreciatio[ coDsidered separately (excluding deprcciation on RoU Asset)

Provisioo for ksve Eaclshrrcnt

Provision fo. Gratuity

Pmvisim for Doutdi Detx

Incom u/s 2(24)(x) r.* 36(lXva)

DisallowaDc.e u/s 4!B
Fee for lncreshg Aulhoriscd Capital (Not€ 23)

lnd AS adjusftr€ot charged to Proit & Lss (Note 2)

Irss: Admissibles

Depreciation ss per IT nrles

InterEst oo lncoae Trx Rcfimd

Muction lmder s€ction 35D - Year I - ROC Fee

Deduction ulder s€ctioD 35D - Yea, 3 - ROC Fee

Budaan Loai

t.07,82,234

49,@,700

10,925

30,000

30,000 50,3 r,625

(r3,rr,420)

r0,92s 10,925

(t3.07,495)

Nil

16 30

8,76,530

52,16,736

I,03,512

5,65.548

12,24,O10

9.521

1,169

1,50,000

35,1l,6lE

lax Due

t€ss:TDS

Reliud Due

Account No,

Bank Nafie

Account Trpe

IFSC

2) ttrd AS .djurtD.rt .h.r8.d to Pmfit & lr..

102905002509

ICICI BANK

CURRENT

tctc0ml029

IOTES

| ) llank account delails

It.m
Ind AS 109

DeprEciation on ROU Assel - Note 22

kss: lnterest lncome on rent deposit (included in lderest on rent deposits - Note no- 17)

lnd AS l16

lntercst Expense on lease liability - Note 2 I

Depreciation on ROU Ass€t - Note 22

Less: Accrued rcnl expcDse for the year

TOTAL

3) The following loss mrt be c.rried forErrd

Business Loss Lnebsorb€d Deprecilaion

2018-19 18,326

20r9-20 t,3 t ,526

2020-21 9 r ,182

202t )1 57,300

2022-23 25.53,77 S 5.59.337

2023-24 14.28,580 19.40.805

2024-25 \3,46,795 49 60.700

2,05,006

1,6 t,623

52,80,969

60,19,I l6
78,31,850

43,381

t4,68.236

35,11,6t 8

,t) Deductiotr und6 seciion 35D is claimd as per ITAT decision io 154 ITD 103

INCOME FROIII O'IHER SOURCE

lnterest on lncome Tax Refund



Kuttuksran Cars Privote Limlted

Balrnce shect

(All amounts in INR millions)

Assets

Nott Current Asset3

Property, plant and equipmeot

Capital work-in-progress

Right-of-Use Asset

IntanSible assel

Financial assets

Other Financial assets

Defered Tax assets

Olher non-current assets

Total non current ssets

Currenl assets

lnventories

Financial assets

Tmde receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

lncome Tax Assel

Oiher current assets

Total currcnt assets

Totrl rssets

Equit) and liabilities

Equlty

Equity share capital

Other equity

Equity attrlbutrble to orner! of aompatry

Liabilltics
Non-current liabilities

Financial Liabilities

Borrol,ings

Le&se Liability

Provisions

Totrl non current lirbllitleg

Currert li!bilitles
Fiiancial liabilities

Borrowings

l,ease Lisbility

Trlde payable

- Total outslanding dues ofmicro and small enterprises

- Total outstanding dues ofcr€ditoas olhet than micro and small

enlerprises

Oth6 linancial liabilities

Provisioos

other current liabilities

Totrl current lirbililiet
Totsl equity rnd lhbllitie!
Mlte rt.l .ccounting policl.r

As a(

ll March 2024

As at

3l Morch 2023

5

29

6

4

4

24

4(A)

t
9

29

6

l0

24

t-1

33.02 2E.70

4.61

t.23

52.59

0.04

46.93

0.07

5.59

5.86

l.5l

1

9ti.6l

14.42

8{.25

4.{.513

17.59

0.41

0.t2

58.02

t6.44

2.02

0.22

8.62

91,26 71.8{t

It9.E7 l56.ll

20.00

(1!.81)

20.00

(27.99',,

(l8.8r) (7.e9)

35.E7

48.74

0.05

83.l9

56.09

0.66

24

l4

t2

l3

r5

0.02

I 1.32

55.71

1.69

63.25

l.9l

l.t9.9J

1. t6

lt{.66

2.e6

68.7{ 79..16

I{t9.87 156. t 3

t-3

fie accompanying noles form an integral parl ofthe balance 4-31

sheet

As per our repon of evm date

for and on behalfof the Board oI Direstors of

Kuttukaran Cars Private Limited

CIN : U50400KL2017 0{9,1.12

For R.G.N. pRtCE & CO.
Chtrtered A(aountant,

4[Al9-rr-,vr/-4J'"'
PM. VEERAMAT{I .-.' -
Parlne,
M. 1o.23933, fR. t{o. OO2785t

Place: Kochi

€2t P(
John K paul

Director

DIN:00016513

DAtc: lS:. S. Lo 2tl

Director

DIN:0001tE2?

0.99

0. r3

0.04

7.00



Kuttukaran Cars Privste Limited

Ststement of Profit & Loss

(All amounts in INR millions)

Particulars

lncome

Reveoue &om operations

Other income

Expenses

Purchases of Stock in Trade

Changes in inventory of stock-in-trade

Employee benefi ts expense

Finance costs

Depreciation and amonisation expense

Other expenses

Total erperres

(LossYprolit before tsx

lncome Tax Expense

Current Tax

Deferred tax

(Loss)/protil fbr the year

Other comprehensive locomc

Iterns that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or

loss

Rerneasurernent ofnet defined b€oefit liability/ (ass€t)

lncome Tax relating to item that will not bereclassified to profit or loss

Tot l comprehetrsive incomc for thc year

(Lossyprofit p€r share (equity share of face vahe of INR l0 each)

For the Yesr

Ended 3l March

2024

For the Year
Ended 3l M8rch

2023

l6

t7

605.70

3.17

400.64

0.29

l8

t9

20

2l
,,
,l

608.87

530.22

t7.74

29.14

15.90

11.44

18.50

{00.93

40t.1 I

(30.53)

t3.20

7.76

6.15

9.39

622.91 407.08

(r4.07)

3.21

(6.15)

r.82

(r 0.86) (4.3-1)

0.05

0.01

(r0.E2) (4.33)

Material sccounthg pollcies

Tle accompanying notes form an integral part of the

staternent ofprofit and loss

As psr our repon of even date aftached

For R.G.t{. PRICE & CO.
Ch.rlcrad A.count.ntt

4[lrQl^a$i ";2
P.M. VEEiAMAT{t ----Part n€ r
M. l{o.23933, FR. r{o. OO2rtsS

Place: Kochi

l)
l)

CIN : U50400 tTPI ( 0.19,1{

tbr and on behalfoithe Board of Directors of
Kuttukaran Cars Private Limited

Basic

Diluted

4

4

5

5

(2.16)

(2.16)

l-3

4-17

62r
John K paul

Director

DIN:00016511

Naveen

!Itll
!r$,{u,itn

*
--to

o
UV3

Date: ,r. tr'hlq
Director

DtN:0001EE27



Kuttukarsn Csrs Private Limited

Cash llow statemetrt

(All amounts in INR millions)

(refer to note 9 - Cash and Cash Equivalents)

The notes referr€d to above form an integral part ofthe standaloBe cash flow statoment

As per our report of even date attached

For R.G.N. PRTCE & CO.
ch..iercd Aclouorrnti for and on behalf ofthe Board of Directors of

4u-Wt-^rr-"*rr-- Kuttukaran Cars Limited

P.M. VEERAMANI '-.
Partner
M. 0. 23933, rR. No. OO2785S

CIN : t150400 0 TPTCO

€2r
Naveen

PARTICULARS Year Ended

3l March 2024

Year Ended

3l March 2023
Cash floui from operating actiyities

ProfiV(Loss) before tax

Depreciation

Finance charges

Provision for Gratuity

Provision for Leave encashment

Credit Balances written Back

interest income on Notional deposit

Operating Prolit before working capital changes
(lncreaseldecrease in inve[tories
(Increase)/decrease in trade receiyables

(Increase/decrease in other curent assets

Increase(decrease) in trade payables

Increase (decrease )in cunent liability
Increase /(decrease )in other frnancial liabilities
Cash generated from,/ (used) in operations

Taxes paid, net ofrefund received

Net cash generated from/ (used) in operating activities (A)

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment

other non current assets

other non current financial assets

other non current liabilities

Net cash used in investirg activiti€s (B)

Cash flows from linaucing activities

Interest expense paid

Lease payment During the year

Short term borrowings

Long term borrowings

Net cash generated from ,inanciBg activities ( C )

Net itrcrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivaleuts at the beginning ofthe year

(t4.07)

t1.44

15.90

0.57

0.10

(2.67')

(0.16)

(6.15)

6.15
'1.76

0.07

(0.20)

(0.08

11.10

30.16

(1. r 5)

(4e.41)

1.86

(4.32)

0.13
(11.62)

(0.60)

7.55

(43.s0)

( 16.12)

(6.e6)

2.98

8.55

1,00

(46.s0)

(0.22)

(12.22)

(e.51)

(0.2e)

(o.e2)

(0.04)

(46.72\

(23.58)

(0.46)

(3.22)

(0.05

(10.75)

( 10.60)

(7.83)

(0.78)

40.s8

(27.31)

(4.0r )
(5.13)

51.3',7

29.71

21.36 71.91

(r.6r)

2.02

(2.0e)

4.tt

Cash and cash equivalents at the €nd of the year 0.41 2,02

Place:

Dste:

Kochi

t{.9. 4 John K Paul

Director

DIN:00016513 DIN:00018827



Kuttukaran Cars Private Limited

Cash Flow Statement (Continued...)

(All amounts in INR in millions)

Reconciliation of financial liabilities forming part of financing activities in accordance with Ind AS 7

+ includes current maturies of long term borrowings

As per ow report of even date attached for and on behalf of the Board ofDirectors of
Kuttukaran Cars Private Limited

CIN : U50400KL2017PTC049442

Place: Kochi

Date: lS.S ao z,

L1 D.*

/
John K paul

Director

DIN: 00016513

N-av Philip

Director

DIN:00018827

tnv

Particulars

As at

1 April

2023

Cash Flows

Non Cash Changes As at

31 March

2024

Fair Value

Changes
Others

Non - Current Borrowings+ 15.t1 40.58 85.72

Curent Borrowings 53.98 (0.78) 53.20

Lease Liabilities (refer note 24) 50.65 (7.83) (42.82)

Particulars

As at

I April

2022

Cash Flows

on -'hanses As at

3l March

2023

Fair Value

Changes
Others

Non - Current Borrowinss* 15.43 29.71 45.14

Curent Borrowings 2.61 51.37 53.98

Lease Liabilities (refer note 24) (5.13) 55.78 5 0.65

=
-ee

a=
€

For R.G.N. PRICE & CO.
Chartered A cco u nta nts

-/-rV\^-eX.L..-q^ 
^r\^^,

Pa,tner
M. flo. 23933. FR. o. 0027t5S

I



Kuttukerrn Crrs Private Limit€d

Strtcmct|t ofChrnge! in Equi\_

(All rmounts in INR millions)

A. Equitl shrre cspitrl

As per our report of evm date attached

For R.G.N. PRICE & CO.
Cha,tered Accountants

P.M. VEERAMANI ,-
Partne,
M. flo.23933, FR. t{o. 0027855

Phce: Kochi

Particulars Equitr Shares

Balance as at I Aptil2022

Changes in equity share capital

20.00.000.00 20.00

Bslancc ar sl 3l }larch 2023 20.00.000.00 20.00

Balance as at I January 2023

Chanqes in equity share capital

20.00,000.00 20.00

Balance as at -11 Mrrch 2023 20.00.000.00 20.00

Balance as at I April 2023

Changes in equity share capital

20,00.000.00 20.00

Behnce as et 3l March 2024 20.00.000.00 20,00

Balance as at I Ocober2023

Changes in equity sharc capital

20.00.000.00 20.00

Balencc As at 3l Deccmb€r 2023 ?0.00.000.00 20,00

Balance as at I Jan 2021

Changes in equity share capital

20.00.000.00 20.00

Balsnce rs a( ll Msrch 2024 20.00,000.00 20.00

I Orher

Particuhrs

Reserves xnd surplus
Items of other

Comprehensive lncome
Tot.l other equity

e(ributrble to eq itl
holders of the Compan.i"

Capital Reserve Reuined €fnings
Remeasurement of neI

deritred benefi t lirbilit!/
(asset),nel of tax

Belrncess lt lsl epril 2022 (23.66) (23.66)

Inss for the year (4.33) (4.33)

Balrncc ss at 3l Nlrrch 2023 t21.99) (21.99t

Balrnce rs at lst ,pril 2023 \21.99\ (21.991

Inss for the period (r0.86) 0.04 ( 10.82)

Bahncc as st 3l Mrrch 202,1 (18.84) 0.0.1 (3r.&)

Balancc as st lst Januar! 2023 (23.90) (2-3.90)

Profil for the period (4.09) (4.09)

Balance as !t 3l Ma.ch 2023 (27.99) (27.99)

Brlence es rt lst October 2023 (31.1t) (3{.3E)

t ss lbr the period (0.54) 0.04 (0.50)

Btrlance ss at 3l December 2023 (-14.9r) 0.01 (31.t8)

Belrnce r' at lst Jrnurr] 2024 (l{.91} 0.0J (-11.88)

Loss for the period (1.e3) (0.00) (3.93)

Bahncc as Bt 3l Nrarch 2024 (38.8{) 0.0-'t (18.81)

for and on behalfofthe of Directors o[
Kuttukarr (ars Privale

CIN: U50dmKL20l

i.(- Naveen PNlip

CABS

F
F

Hl-

Dele: r{, s - hut Director

DIN: fi)o16513

Director

DtN:0001



Kuttukaran Cars Private Limited

trlotes to financial statements

Notes to the financial statements
(All arnounts in Indian rupecs millions)

1. Company overview

Kuttukaran Cars Private Limited was incorporatcd in 201 I as a Private Limited Company. The

Company is carrying on business as authorized dealers for sales and service of Ather electric scooters.

2, Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Popular Vehicles and Services Limited whose

financial statements are prepared in accordance wilh Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules

2015 notified under section 133 ofthe Companies Act 2013 (the Act), as amended and other relevant

provisions of the Act. Consequently, these financial statements are prepared in accordance with

Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules 2015. Further, being a subsidiary of a tisted public

company, this Company is also deemed to be a public company.

Details ofCompany's accounting policies are included in Note 3.

B. Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company's

functional currency. All amounts are presented in Indian Rupees in millions.

C Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for cases where ever

fair value is applicable.

D, Use of estimates and judgements

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and

assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,

liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounling

estimates are recognized prospectively.

Judgments

Information about judgments made in applying accounting policies that have the most material

effects on the amounts recognized in the financial statements.

e

A"

=

2

A"e
*^-z

-no

D.*

r n'l

t ricet.



Kuttukaran Cars Private Limited

^lotes 
to financial statements

3. Material accounting policies

3.1

A
Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalized borrowing

costs, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost of an item of

property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-

refundabte purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost

of bringing the item to its working condition lbr its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling

and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials

and direct labor, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to working condition fbr its

intended use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on

which it is located.

lf significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they

are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. Any gain

or loss on disposal ofan item ofproperty, plant and equipment is recognized in profit or loss.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of fixed assets, outstanding at each balance sheet date ar€

shown under Other Non-current assets. The cost of fixed assets not ready for its intended use at each

balance sheet date are disclosed as capital work-in-progress. Borrowing costs directly attributable to

the acquisition, construction or production of those fixed assets that necessarily take a substantial

period to get ready for their intended use, are capitalized. Other borrowing costs are accounted as an

expense in the statement ofprofit and loss.

B. Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated

with the expenditure will flow to the Company.

C Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated

residual values over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method, and is generally

recognized in the protit or loss. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the useful lives of

assets.

Assets costing less than Rs.5000/-each are depreciated at the rate of 100% in the year ofpurchase.

The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment are as lbllows:

Revised LitePrevious LifeClass of Assets

Useful life is

calculated over

the principle

period of Lease

Useful life is

calculated over

the pnnciple

period of Lease

Building

l5l5Plant and Machinery

55Electncal Equipment's

55Office Equipment's

3z3Computer and Accessories

55Motor Car
55Motor Cycle
l0 vl0Fumiture and Fittings

P.i
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Kuttukaran Cars Private Limited

^!tes to financial statements

Tools & Equipnrent's

3.2 Intangible assets:

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment. Intangible assets

are amortized over their respective individual estimated useful lives on a straightJine basis,

commencing from the date the asset is available to the Company for its use and is included in

amortization in profit or loss.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Class of asscts Years

Software 3

Amortization method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial year

and adj usted if appropriate.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in

the specific asset to which it relates. AII other expenditure is recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

3.3 Employee benefits.

Short- te rm etnploy e e ben efits

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employee services are

classified as short-term employee benefits. These benefits include salaries and wages, bonus and ex-

gratia. Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are

expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recogrrized for the amount expected to be paid

e.g., under shortterm cash bonus, if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation topay

this amount as a result ofpast service provided by the employee and the amount of obligation can be

estimated reliably.

P os r e mp loy m e nt ben eJits

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays

fixed

contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further

amounts. The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards Govemment administered

provident fund scheme. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognized as

an employee benefit expense in profit or loss in the periods during which the related services are

rendered by employees.

Prepaid contributions are recognized as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reductio4 ln

furure payment is available.

The company is covered under the Group Gratuity Scheme of Life Insurance Corporation of India for

future payments of Gratuity as determined on actuarial basis by LIC of India. The contribution is

debitcd to gratuity payablc.
* gz0

f\

Defined bene/it plans



Kuttukaran Cars Private Limited
j.\lotes to financial statements

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The

Company's net obligation in respect of defined benefit plan is calculated by estimating the amount of
future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods and discounting that

amount.

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is peilbrmed annually by a qualified actuary using the

projected unit credit method.

Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses are

recognized in other comprehensive income (OCI). The Company determines the net interest expense

on the net defined benefit liability for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the

defined benefit obligation at the beginning ofthe annual period to the then-net defined beneftt liability,

taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit tiability during the period as a result of
contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit

plans are recognized in profit or loss.

Other long term emplol,ee benefts

The Company's net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits other than post-employment

benefits is the amount of future benefit that employees have eamed in retum for their service in the

current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of
any related assets is deducted. The obligation is measured on the basis of an annual independent

actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. Re-measurement gains or losses are

recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

3.4 Revenue

Revenue on sale of vehicles is recognized when the risk and rewards are transferred to the customer

and is accounted net ofsales tax, fame II incentive and trade discounts, ifany.

3.5 lnventories

Inventories are valued on the basis of cost or net realizable value, whichever is less. Cost for this

purpose is arrived at as follows:

a)

b)

c)

d)

Vehicles on Specific Identification Basis

Spares and Accessories on FIFO method

Accessories and Batteries on FIFO method

Goods in transit in respect of vehicles and spares are accounted in the books, upon billing and

dispatch ofthe same by the principal fiom their factory/ warehouse and are shown under the heads

inventories.

3.6 Earnings/loss per share

The basic eamings/loss per share is computed by dividing the net profit(loss) after tax for the year

attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding

during the year.

The number of shares used in computing diluted eamings per share comprises the weighted average

number of shares considered for deriving basic eamings per share and also the weighted average

number of equity shares that could have been issued on the conversion of all di tial equity

converted as of the beg pshares. Dilutive potential equity shares

issued at a later date. In comput

dilutive i.e. which reduces eam

per share, only uity
(Mea )

d unless

are
N.Prl

y',

3,7 Cash-flow statement

loss per sharc

/lcc

\

\



Kuttukaran Cars Private Limited

-j.{otes to financial statements

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the

effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any defertals or accruals of past or future cash

receipts or payments. The cashflows from regular revenue generating, investing and financing

activities ofthe Company are segregated.

3.8 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand which are subject to insignilicant risk

of changes in value

3.9 PreliminaryExpenses

Preliminary Expenses are written offin the year of commencement of business.

3.10 Leases

Ind AS I 16 has replaced existing leases standard with effect from 01.04.2019, Ind AS 17 Leases (Ind

AS 17) and sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of

leases for both lessees and lessors. It introduces a single, on-balance sheet lessee accounting model for

lessees. A lessee recognizes present value of the lease payment (discounted using incremental

borrowing rate) as right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset and a lease

liability representing its obligation to make lease payments and lease rent expense will be replaced with

the amortization of right-of use-asset and interest accrued on lease liability. The standard also contains

enhanced disclosure requirements for lessees and will have consequential impact on cash flows

categories as well. The new standard substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in

Ind AS 17.

The Company has applied the provisions ofthis standard only in respect ofthose lease agreenrents other

than short term leases. Where the non-cancellable period in the lease agreements entered into by the

Company are for a period of less than one year, such leases fall within the meaning of short term lease

as per the standard and thus qualifies for exemption as per para 5 to 8 of Ind AS 116. Accordingly, this

3.1 I Recosnition of interest income or intercst c\t) cn se

Interest income or expense is recognized using the effective interest method.

The 'effective interest rate'is the rate that exactly discounts estimated fufure ca or

receipts through the expected life of the financial instnrment to the gross carrying amount of the

financial asset or the amortized cost ofthe financial liability.

In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the goss carrymg

amount ofthe asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the amortized cost ofthe liability.

3.12 Income Tax

i)Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognized in respect oftemporary differences between the carrying amounts ofassets

and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the conesponding amounts used for taxation

purposes. Deferred tax is also recognized in respecl of carried forward tax losses and tax credits.

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be

available against which they can be used. The existence ofunused tax losses is strong evidence that

future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the

Company recognizes a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable

tcmporary differences or there is convincing other cvidence that sufficient taxable profit witl be '',.

* 920

a-

available against which such deferred tax asset can be realized. Deferred tax assets - unrecognized or

)

standard is not applied for short term leases.



Kuttukaran Cars Private Limited
/'ttes to financial statements

recognized, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recogrized/ reduced to the extent that it is

probable/ no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rat€s that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is

realized or the liability is settl€d, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by

the reporting date. The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow

from the manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying

amount ofits assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset

cwrent tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on

the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and

assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized simultaneously.

3.1l. Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction ofan asset which necessarily take

a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalized as part of the cost of

that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are

incurred.

-1-12. Prior Period ltems

Expenses/income less than Rs. 5,00,000, if any, are not treated as prior period items as they are not

material considering the scale of operations of the conpany. Further, expense / income relating to

earlier years which crystallised during the year are not treated as prior period items.

* gzo
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Kuttukaran Cars Privrte Limited

Notes to the fitrancial statemcnts (continued)

(All amounts in INR milliors)

4(A) Intsngible rssets

Particulars

Gross Block

Balance at I Apnl2022

Additions

Disposals

Bsl.nce rt 3l Msrch 2023

Balance at I April 2023

Additions

Disposals

Bslstrce rt 3l M8r 2024

Balance at I Jan 2023

Additions

Disposals

Balanc€ rt 3l Mar 2023

Balance at I Oct 2023

Additions

Disposals

Behnce st 3l dec 2023

Balance al I Jan 2024

Additions

Disposals

Brhnce at 31 Msr 2024

Accumuhtcd anrortisation

Balance at I Apil2022

Amonisation for the year

Bllance at 31 M&rch 2023

Balance at I April 2023

Amortisation for the year

Balance st 3l March 2024

Balance at I Jan 2023

Additions

Disposals

BalrDce at 3l Mtr 2023

Balaice at I Oct 2023

Additions

Disposals

Balarce rt 3l dec 2023

Balance at I Jan 2024

Additions

Disposals

Bslsnce .t 3l Mar 202,1

0.09

0.01

0.t)9

0.01

0.10

0.t I

0.10

0.1 |

0.t I

0,1I

0.1 I

0.1I

Softnare Total

0.04

0.06

0.04

0.06

0.t0

0.01

0.1I

0.1I

0. r0

0.r0

0.01

0.03

0.04

0.07

0.03

0.01

0.1 I

0.1I

0.03

0.04

0,07

0.06

0.00

0.03

0.03

0.00

0.03

0.03

0.03

005

0.0t

0.03

0.0t

0.03

0.0s

0.01

0.06

0,06

0.01

0.00

0.07

0.06

0.01

0.07

At 3l M8rch 2024

At 3l March 2023

0.04

0.07

0.04

0.0?

0.10

cP r rce,.^1$

\
I



Kuttuksran Cars Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

(All emounts in INR millions)

Particulars

5 Other Financial assets

Non - Current

Considered Good - Unsecured

Rent and other deposits

6 Other Asscts

Non-current

Prcpayments

Advance for capital goods

Current
Prepaynents

Balance with Gort Authorities

Advance to supplien and othen

Other receivable

7 Inventories

(Valued at lower ofcost and realisable value)

New vehicles

Spares and Accessories

Goods in Transit - Vehicle

Goods in Transit- Spare

Less: Provision for obsolete inventory

8 Trade receivables

Secured- considered good

Unsecured- consldered good

which have significant increase in credit risk

credit impaired

Less: Allowance for expected credit loss

Others

Trade Receivables

Note - Refer Note No 36(a) for ageing analysis of Trade Receivables

9 Cash rnd crsh equiv&lents

Balance with banks

- in current accounts

Cheque on hand

Cash on hand

Cash and cash equivalents in balance s

As at
31 March 2024

5.59

As at

31 March 2023

4.6"t

5.59 1.67

1.23

l.5l r.23

0.22

1.99

55.80

0.01

0.14

5.99

2.42

0.07

s8.02 8.62

8. l4
5.7 3

21.89

9.7 |
t2.59

0.390.55

t1.42 .1,1.58

t1.12 ,14.5E

16.44

1.48

1.22

1.22

t6.l I
17.59 16.'1,1

0.27

0.03

0.l l

1.9',]

0.05a NRS

(04$\

(

0.4r 2.02

t.47

0.M

)

e



Kuttukarsn Csri Private Limited

.es to tbe linancial ststements (continued)

(All lmounts in INR millions)

t0

As rt ll March 2024 As at ll Ntarch 2023

Number of shsres Amount Number ofshsres AmountI Sh.re capital

Auahorised

Equity shares of INR I 0 each

Pref€r€rlce Share of INR 1,000 each

lssued, subscribed lnd paid-up

Equity shares of lNRl0 each ,fully paid-up

Share held b! Promoters at the end ofthe year

Promotors Nanre

Naveefl Philip (held as nominee ofPopular vehicles

ard S€f,vic€s Limited)

Popular Vehicles and S€rvices Limited

Total

Reconcil.tion ofshares outltlnding at the

Equity thares of lNR.l0 each fully paidttp

At the beginning of the year

Add:issued during the year

At the erd of the ye.r

40,00,000

20,000

40.00

20.00

20,00,000

20,000

20.00

20.00

{0.20.000 60.00 20.20.000.00 20.00

20.00.000.00 20.00 20,00.000 20.00

20.00.000.00 20.00 20.00,000.00 20.00

As it 3l Msrch 2024

No of Shares 7o of total Shares

l0%

19.q9.999 t 00%

20.00,000 loovo

I

19,99,999

20,m,000

o%

t0oo/o

t0/DYo

As at 3l Msrch 2023

No of shsres 70 of totll
Shares

10.(x).000 20 20.00.000 20.(x)

20.00.000.00 20 20.00.000.00 20.00

(a) Rights, Fefereoces and restrictions attached to equity shares

The Company has a single class of equity shares. All the equity shares rank equally with r%ard to dividends and sharc in the Company's

residual assets. The equity shar€s are entitled to reccive dividend as d€clared from time to time. The voting rights of an equity

shareholder on a poll (not on show of hands) are in proportion to sharc of paid-up equity capital of the Company. Voting rights calnot

be ex€icised in resp€ct ofshares on which any call or other sums presandy payable have not been paid. Failure to pay any amount call€d

up on the shares may lead to the forfeiture of shares.On winding up ofthe Company, the holders of the equity shares will be entitl€d lo

receive the residual assets of the Company, remaining aiier the distribution of all prefcrenlial amounts in proportion to th€ number of
equity shar€s held.

(b) Detsils of shireholdcrs holding more than 57o

shares of the Company

,\s at -11 Nlarch 2024 As at -11 Mar.h 2023

Number of shares

(in millions)
Yo holding

in the clrss

Number ofshares
(in millions)

9/o holding

in the class

Eqdty shares ofINR.I0 eachj ly paid-up

20.00.000.00 20,00,000.00

a) Popular Vehicles and Services Limited 100% t 000/0

The company is a 100% subsidiary of Popular

Vehicles and Services Limited

(c) The Company increased its Authorised Capital liom 20,00.000 qluity shares ofRs. I

vide Resolulion of shareholders in Extraordinary Ceneral Meeting dat€xl 03lO8/2023

4

2

KO

uiw sharqi of
n

)



Kuttuk!r&n Cars Private Limited

Notes to the financisl statements (continued)

(All rmounts in INR millions)

Particulars

ll Borowings

Non - Curreot

Secured Loam

Term loans from banks

Vehicle loan from financial institution

Unsecured Lorns

lnteacorporate Loan

Loan from directors

As at

3l Mrrch 2024

As at

3l Msrch 2023

15.15

0.1 I

80.59

2.60

13.02

7.60

8-1.19 -15.t7

Current

Secured Losns

Sho( teim loan from banks

Cash Credit and Overdr.ft facilities ftom bar*s

Short term loan from financial institution

Cunent Maturities of loDg term d€bt

Unsecured Loans

Cash Credit and Ovfrdraft facilities ftom banks

Short term loan fiom financial institution

Current Maturities of long t€f,m d€bt

49.69

3.51

0.r0

7.43

42.36

1.68

9.94

2.19

6.48

a)

b)

c)

d)

a)

55.7J 6J.25

Securcd bank lorns

Tfin loan fiom Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited is s€cured by first charge on all existing and future curent assests / movable

Fixed Assets of the company which are financ€d by the bank, Collateral security by way of equitable mortgage of

Inmovable prop€rties of the Kuttuktaran Trading Ventures. Kuttul4(aran Homes LLP, Personal Guarantee of the directors

ald promoter directors ofthe holding company. The loan is repayable in monthly installments of52 fiom the date

commencing from 0l .04.2021. The Loan is ake{r for the purpose of seiting up nerx showrooms. This loan is closed during the

yeaf .

Vehicle loan secured by hy,pothecation ofthevehicle financed and personal guarantees by director ofthe company.The loan

is repayable in 6 installmeots fom date commencing fiom 0l -04-2024. Three velicles loan out of four vehicle closed in

February 2024.

Cash Credit from Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited is secured by lirst charge on all existing and future current assests / movable

Fixod Assets of the company which arc financed by the bank, Collateral security by way of equitable mortgage of

lmmovable propetties of the Kuttukkaral Trading Ventures, Kuttukkaran Homcs LLP, P€rsonal Guarant€e of the directors

ard promoter directors of the holding company.

Shon Tenn Loan liom HDFC Bank Limited is secured by way ofh)'pothecation of stock in respect ofvehicles financed by

the bank , Personal guarantee of director ofthe Company and Corporate guarantee of the holding company .

Short Tfin Loan from Karur vysya Bank Limited is secur€d by way ofhypoth€cation ofstock in respect ofvehicles

financ€d by the bank and CoDorate guarantee of the holding company .

Shon Te'm Loan from IDFC FirstBankis securod by way ofh),pothec{tion ofstock in respect ofvelticles financed by the

bank and receivables against them.

ShonTefm Loan fiorB ICICI Bank Limited is secured by way ofhypothecation ofstock in respect ofvehicles financed by

the bank and Pemsnal Guaraotee ofNave.n Philip , John K Paul & Francis K Paul .

UDsecured Lorn
Intercorporate loan taken fiom holding mmpany in FY 22-23 & FY 24-25 catries interat @,8.85Yo,9.7lo/o utd 8,6U/o

respectively. The intercorporate loan taken duing FY 2023-24 is repayable within 5 yea$

e)

f)

c)

B

Pri

-0

2 025

b) Unsecured Loans liom directors are interest ltee. Tenns ofr€payment not stipulated

.,(

a



l2 Other financirl lisbiltics

Corporate C uarantee Commission payable 0.tl
0.1-i

13 ProvisloD

Non{urretrt

Provision for ernployee benefits

Provision for Gratuity

Compensated absences

0.66

Currctrt

Provision for qnployee benefits

Compensated absences 0.04

0.0"1

l4 Trade Pay8ble

Dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

Others- Trade Payable

2.15

Note - Refer Note No 36(b) for ageing analysis of Trade Payable

All trrde pryrblB .re 'curr€rt'.
Disclosures as roquir€d und6 the Micro, Small and Medium Enterpris€s Developm€nt Act, 2006 ("the Act") basod on 6e

infomation available wilh lhe Company are givea below:

0.53

0.13 0.05

0.05

0.02

0.0:

l.l6
0.99 2.96

2.96

The principal arnount rernaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end ofthe

year

The interest due on the pdncipal rernaining outstanding as at the end of the

y@r

The arnount of interest paid under the Act, along with the amounts ofthe

payment made beyond the appointed day during the year

The amount ofint€rest due and payable for the p6iod ofdelay in making

payment (which have b€en paid but beyond the appointed day during the

year) but without adding the interest specified under the Act

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end ofthe year

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the

succeeding years, unlil such date when the inlerest dues as above are actually

paid to the small ent€rprise, for the purpose ofdisallowance a.s a deductible

expenditure under the Act

t.l6

l5 Other curredt llabilaies

Current

Statutory dues payables

Contract Liabiliti€s

Other Liabilities

0.69

3.72

2.59

0.60

9.69

1.03

7.00 Il.12

s.

)ce
t-

rIvtv9 vHvtl
lul lc

vuvlnun)l

tsg

o
{

\



Ktlttukrrrn Cars Privste Limited, Kochi - 25

Noaes to tbe fitrrtrcisl strtemetrts (continued)

(All amounts in millions )

ll Borrowings (cotrtinued)

A Strtemcnt of detrils of tcrms atrd cotrditions of the curretrt alrd oon{urrent borrowings.

N secured

Non-cu

Non-cu unsecured

Note:

The balsnce includes currenl matuilies of long lerm borrowings

The borrowings from banla / financial instilutions carry interest rates lrom E.75ok to l0ok per annum

Nature of borrowitrg

Term Loan from Bank

Name of the leoder

Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited

As at

3l March 2024

As at

3l March 2023

17.49

Vehicle Ioans from financial institutions

Intercorporate Loan

Sundaram Finance [-imited

Popular Vehicles and Serviccs

Limited

0.10

83.02

0.5 5

I S.50

Curretrt, secured

Cash credit and overdraft facilities fiom

banks
Kotak Mahindra Bank

3.51 1.68

Shon term loans from banks HDFC Bank Limited

(0.00) 19.38

Shon term loans fiom banks Karur Vysya Bank Limited

45.01 19.86

Short term loans from banks IDFC First Bank Limited

3.13

Shorl term loans from financial

institutions

Hero Fin Corp
9.93

Short term loans from financial

institutions

I-oans 6om directors

ICICI Bank

Directors

0.00

2.60 7.60

r38.92

A)€
<)

D

1I

)
(

unsecured

4.68

99.12

P. 0



KuttukrrrD Crrs Privlte Limited

Notes to the fiosncirl statcmetrts (continued)

(4I rmounts itr INR millions)

16 Reve[ue froD operatiotrs

Sde of products

Sales of New vehicles

Sales Sparcs And Accessories

Other Operating Income

Labour Income

Income fiom discounts and incentives

Finance and insurance commission

Other Operating Income

For the Yecr

Etrded 3l Mrrch

2024

For thc Yerr
Ended 3l Mxrch

2021

522.54

34.4t

332.76

5?-08

6.76

28.47

8.82

4.70

0.68

5.55

3.53

1.04

61,5. /lt ,t00.6,1

Recoocilirtion of reveDue from srle of products rnd services

Gtoss revenue

Lessr Discount allowed

605.70 r00.63

(A) Disaggregate of reretrue iDformatiotr

The table below presents disaggregated rcvenue from contracts wilh customeN for the below years ended by offerings and contract type.

The Croup belive that this disaggregation best depicts how the nature,amount,timing and uncertainity of our revenues and cash flows are

effected by industry, market and other economic facto6

646.11

4t.07

401.24

6.64

Prrticulars

Ravenue by nature

Vehicles

Others

522.54

83.t6

312.16

67.88

605.70

Reveoue by contract type

Fixed Price 605.70

605.70

(B) CoDtrrct bdioces

The follotriog t ble p.ovid6 lnforrrl.tion .bout trade roceivrbles lnd cotrh.ct li.bilitics fiorE contrict wiah cu.tomers.

Particulars

.100.6,1

400.64

.100.6.t

Tr6de receivables

Contract liabilities

For th. Yerr
Etrded 3l Msrch

2024

For the Yeer

Ended 3l Mrrch

2023

t7.59

3.12

t6.M

9.69

( C) TrlDssction price dlocated to remritritrg performance obligatiotr

The following table ircludes revcnue expected to be r€cogniged in the future relat€d to performancc obligations that arc uosatisfi€d (or

partially satisfied) ar the rcponing date.

Prfdculers

3.12 9.69

t(
;\ 6

.','l!

3.72 9.69

Within I year

I-.1 year

Morethan 3 years

ClosiDg brlance



l7 Other ltrcome

lnterest income on rcnt deposirs (Notional)

lnterest on lT refund

Credit balance written back

Miscellaneous lncome

Discounts incom€

l8 Purchases of stock-in-trade

Vehicles

Spares and accessories

19 Chsnge ln Inventories of stock-in-trrde

Opening stock

Closing stock

20 Employec bcnellts expense

Salaries and allowances

Cratuity

Leave Encashment

Staff Welfare Expense

2 l Firrtrcc coit

lnterest on lrase Liability

Interest on bank borrowings

Commission on inter corporate guarantee

Interest on inter corporate loan

Finance Cost Others

22 Depreclatlon snd rmortisatiotr expetrse

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

Amortisation on intangible assets

Amortisation on Right ofUse ( ROU) Asset

23 Other er.p€trses

Rcnt

Advenising & Promotional

Transportation charges

Workshop Expenses

Legal, professional and other consultancy

Travelling and conve,,ance

Rates and taxes

Bank Charges

Printing and stationery

Power, water and fuel

Rcpairs & maintenance

Housekeeping & Security

lnsurance Charges

Communication

Office Exp€nscs

Proviion for Doubtful debts

Miscellaneous expenses

0.0lt

0.20

0.01

3.17 0.29

0.16

0.01

2.67

0.33

49t.74

38.48

338.47

62.64

s30.22 401.I I

31.6r

13.87

1.08

31.61

t7.74 (30.s3)

27.88

0.57

0.10

0.59

12.86

0.07

0.2'7

29.1{ 13.20

5.28

8,43

0,48

1.70

0.01

3.14

2.47

r.55

15.90 7.76

5. l8

0.04

6.22

2.12

0.03

4.00

I l.{{ 6.15

l.'7 5

0.95

o.7 5

0.33

1.78

0.76

0.31

t.24

1.47

2.29

1.68

2.37

0.30

0.22

0.98

1.22

0.10

0.35

1.2'7

0.41

0.04

0.61

o.64

0.63

0.74

1.04

1.06

0.71

1.20

0.15

0.15

0.30

0.10//

l(UTIU(ARAII

cEilI8r
MAMAilGItA

-6

= .o

18.50 i . ' 9.39



Kuttukaratr Cars Private Limited
Notes to the linancial statements (continued)
(Allamounts in INR millions)

24 Leases

The Company has adopted Ind AS 116 'Leases' with the date ofinitial application being April
1,2021. lnd AS rcplaces lnd AS 19 - Leases and rclated interpretation and guidance. The Company

has applied Ind AS 116 using the modified restrospective approach, under which the cumulative

effect of initial application is recognised in tho retained eamings at April 1 , 202 I . As a result, the

comparative information has not been restated.

Following are the changes in the carrying value ofright ofuse assets

The aggegate depreciation expense on ROU asset is included under depreciation and amortisation

expense in the Statement of PIofit and Loss.

The followin is the ofcurent and non-current lease liabilities

The follow is the movement in lease liabilities the od ended March 31, 2024

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities oflease liabilities as at March

31, 2024 on an undiscounted basis.

!.--l f

Particulars
For the Year

Erded 31 March

2024

For the Year

Ended 3l March

2023

Opening Balance 46.93 2t.92

Add: Additions I1.68 28.90

Less: Reversal ofROU asset due to cancellation oflease agreement

Less: Depreciation 6.02 3.88

Balance at the erd ofthe period 31.03.2024 52.59 46.93

Particulars
For the Year

Ended 31 March

2024

Ror the Year

Ended 3l March

2023

Cunent lease liabilities 3.69 l.9l

Non-current lease liahilities 56.09

Total 59.78 50.65

P.rticulars
For the Year

Ended 3l March

2024

For the Year

Ended 3l March

2023

Opening Balance 50.65 23.t4

Add:Additions 11.68 28.90

Add: Finance Cost accrued during the period as per IND AS I 16 5.28 3.74

Less: Lease liability for the pe od as per rcnt agreement '7.83 5.13

Balance at the end of the period 31.03.2024 59.78 s0.65

Particulars
For the Year

Ended 3l March

2024

For the Year

Ended 3l March

2023

Less than one vear 8.8tt 6.23

One to Five vears ,,-,ft. 38.06 36.89

,^" 44.s1 38.02More than five vears

Y.-\ /dx3\ 91.45 81.14KUTTUKARAI,/
Total undiscounted lelse liabilities

MAMANGATA

- 6s2

48.',74



Kuttukaran Cars Privste Limited, Kochi - 25

Notes to the financial strtements (contirued)

(All lmount$ in INR millions)

25 Earnings/(loss) per shere

A. Brsic errohgdoori) per 3hare

The calculation ofprofit4oss amibuuble to equity share holdqs and weigbtod average numbq ofequity shates outstanding

for the purpose ofbasic eamings p€t sharc calculaitons are as follows:

i) Net pro{itl(loss) attributable to equit} shsre

holders

Particulars For the Y€ar Etrded

3l Merch 2024

For the Yesr Ended

3l March 2023

N€t profiv(loss) for the year, attributable io the

equity share holdEs (A) ( 10.82) (4.33)

ii) weighted avcrage number of equit-v shares (basic)

B, Diluted errtritrgs(loss) Per shrre

The calculation ofprofit4oss attributable to equity share holders and weighted ava-age numb€t of equity sharcs outstanding'

after adjustrnent for the effects ofall dilutive poteotial equity shares is as follows:

Nct atlribufable to sharc holdcrs diluted

Parliculars
For the Year Endcd

3l March 2024

For the Ycsr Ended

3l March 2023

Nd profit/(loss) for the y€a., attribuhble to the

equity share holde$(A) (r 0.82) (4.33)

iD \\ ted a number of shares dilu

(

2

Particulars
For the Year Ended

3l March 2024

For the Ye.r Eoded

3l March 2023

N umb€r of €qu ity shares at rhe beginn ing of the

yeir.(Reler note l) 20.00.000.00 20,00,000.00

weighted av6age number of equity shares of

INR l0 each during theyear(B) 20.00.000.00 20.00,000.00

Earnings / (loss) per share, basic (A./B)
(5.41) (2.16)

Particulars
For the Year Ended

3l March 2024

For the Yerr Ended

3l Msrch 2023

Weighted average number of equity shares of
INR l0 each for the year (basic)

20,00,000.00 20,00,000.00

weighted average number of eluity shares of

INR I0 each for the year (dilutedxB)

20,00.000.00 20,00,000.00

Eamings / (loss) per share, diluted(A/B) (5.4r ) (2.16)

For the Year Ended

3l March 2023

For the Year Ended

3l March 2024

0.060.06audir

er nlatlers
0.060.06i','. /"//Total

Auditors' rcmuner!tion

\ z,7,G..
//$l--i'$\\



Kuttukaran Cars Privrte Limited

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

(All smounts in INR millions)

27 Relited partles

I. Names of related parties ond desciption of relationshiP

(a) Holding Company

(b) Associates and Fellow Subsidiaries

(c) Key manag€ment personnel and their relatives (KMP)

Popular Vehicles and Seryices Limited

Popular Auto Dealers Privatc Limited

Popular Autoworks Private Limited

Vision Motors Private Limited

Popular Mega Motors (lndia)Private Limited

Kuttukaran Green Private Limited

Mr. Naveen Philip,Director

Mr. Fmncis K Paul, Dircctor

Mr. John K Paul, Director

Mr. Ranjan K Nair Additional director*

Mr. A. Dinesh Additional Director*

*Appointed u'. eJ I 7.08. 202 2

' Mr A . Dinesh ceased to be the director ofthe company with elfect 03.08.2023

II. Related party transactions:

(a) The Company has entercd into the following transactions with related parties

For the Year Ended

3lst Mrrch 2023

For the Year Ended

3lst March 2024
Prrticulars

Lorn Received

Francis K Paul

8.5070.00Popular Vehicles and Services Limited
l5.00Naveen Philip

[,oan Repaid
10.005.00Naveen Philip
4.006.48Popular Vehicles and Services Limited

Sale ofvehicles

Popular Mega Motors India Pvt Limited

Purchase of Asset

0.030.14Popular Mega Motors India Pvt Limited

0. ti4Popular Auto Dealers Plt Limited

Interest paid to Relsted P

1.551.70Popular Vehicles and Services Limited

Corporate Guarantee Commissiotr pa id

0.48Popular Vehicles and Services Limited

Dxpe nses met on behslfofthe comPan!

0.06Popular Mega Motors lndia Pl.t Limited

0. t4Kuttukaran Green Private Limited

0.1IPopular Vehicles and Services Limited

&xpeDses met by the ComPanY
0.1I0.14ar Auto Works Limited

0.31Vehicles and Services Limited
0.020.08Motors lndia Pvt LimitedMe

=\rq\ 0.04
---T*llM Motors lndia P!'t Limited

Paid

& Maintenance
$i

0.36
P ular Vehicles and Services Limited

0.08



lll. Balance payable/receivable to related panies as at the balance sheet date

Prrticulers
For the Yerr f,lded

3lst March 2024

For the Yerr Ended

3lst March 2023

Popular Mega Motors India P!'t Limited

Popular Vehicles and Services Limited - lnter corporate loan

83.02 19.50

Popular Vehicles and Services Limited
0.20 0.07

Loan from Directors

Fnncis K Paul
0.10 0.10

Naveen Philip 2.5
7.5

Popular Auto Works Limited

Popular Auto Dealers P\t Ltd

Kuttukaran Green Private Limited

85.82

27JV (a) No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other

sources or kind of fiuds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entiMies), including foreign enriries

("tntermediaries") with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall lend or

invest in other persons or entities identified by or on behalfofthe Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any

guarantee, security or like on behalfofthe Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The Company has not received any funds fiom any person(s) or entity(ies) ("Funding Party'') with the understanding,

whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other

persons or entities identified by or on behalfofthe Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee,

security or the like on behalfofthe Ultimate Beneficiaries.

b

- 682

27.t7
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Kuttukaran Cars Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

(All emounts in INR millions)

Particulars

Deferred tax assetV(liabilities)

Deferred income tax assets

Gratuity Payable

Deduction under section 35 D

Irave Encashment

Impact of IndAS I 16

Unabsorbed depreciation and business loss

Total deferred income tax assets

Deferred income tax liabilities

Property, plant and equipment and computer software

Total deferred income tax liabilities

Deferred income tax assets after set off

Incom€ tax expense / ( benelits )
Current tax

Deffered Tax

Income tax expense for the year reconciled to the accounting profit

Particulars

Profit before Tax

Income Tax expense

Current tax

Deferred Tax

Profit afier Tax

Income Tax rate on normal Income

Income tax expense

Admissible expenses

lnadmissible expenses

Ind AS adjustments

Unabsorbed depreciation

Income Tax expense recognised in Profit or

As st 3l March

2024

As at 31 March

2023

0.82 0.22

0.82 0.22

0.13

0.04

0.03

L8l
4.05

0.01

0.02

0.93

1.95

6.06

0.20

2.91

0.26

0.20 0.26

5.86 2.65

As at 31 March

2024

As at 3l March

2023

5.86 2.65

( 14.07)

3.2\

2.65

(6. r 5)

1.82

(10.86) (4.33)

25.168%

U$RIN(uI1
lSEEc

A$Au

2,

!^I

Ht-

25.168%

29 Taxes

Income trx assetvoisbility)

Income lax assets

Current income tax liabilities

Net hcome tax assets/(liability) at the end

5.86

)Q"
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Kuttukaiar Cars Priv-ate Ltmtted, Kocht _ 25

Notes to the fitratrclal st tements (condnued)

(All amountr in INR in millionsl

30 Floatrclal lnstrumetrts- Fair values and risk Eanagement

A Accounting classifcadons and fair values

The following table shows the cafiylng amounts and frirvalues offinancial assets and financial liabilities, induding their levels in the fair value hierarchy.

24

Measuremert of fair valles
The fairvalue oftie financial instruments is determined usingdiscounted cash flow analysis. Thediscount rates used is based on management estimates

Level 1 falr values

lnvestment in equity shares that has a quoted price and which are actively traded on the stock exchanges. lt is been valued using the closing price as at the

reporting period on the stock exchanges.

Lvel 2 falr values

Investment in mutual funds - is unquoted price and are observable for the asset or liability, either direcdy (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from Prices)

lxvel 3 falr vdoes
lf one or more of the siSnificant inputs is not based on observable data, the instrument is

included in level 3.

.tfwPL
Level3

Fln D.lal rssets rot E.:rur!d .t faU vdu.
cash ard cash equivalents

Other financlal assets

rbancl.l ar$45 measurcd .t frl. valu!
R.nt Deposit (lncluded in other flnancial Asset!)

0.,11

71 59

26t

2.98

0.41

17.59

2.61

2.98

20.61 2.94 20,61 2,9A 2.94

Uabllltles
Ilru.l.l lLbllli.. mcauEd al .mortltcd cost

Other linancial liabilities

0

6

0

2.15

134.92

59.74

0.13

2.15

138.92

59.74

0.13

200.98 200.94

tl[amld

li.bllitlesai
Totalc.rflng

Level3 Total

Hra.lal .ssets rot m..sutrd .t fel. v.luG
cash and cash eqlivalenLs

other nnancial assets

tllrcld ass€ts mearur€d .t f.lr vrlue
Rent Deposit (lncluded in other tinancial Assets)

8

5

2.O2

16,45

3.02

165

2.02

16.45

3_02

165 1.65

21,49 1.65 27.49 1.65 1.6S

l,Lbtlltt.s
tharrLl lLbllrtles m.aiu]td rt ,nonds€d cost

ofier nrancial llabilities

l4
11

24

12

2.96

99.72

50.65

2.96

99.12

50.65

rs2.73 tsz.?3
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<(')4
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Kuttulgrar cars Prlvate Umlted, Ko<hl - 25

l{otes to dre n[aDciel statemelts (co[thued)
(All amounts in INR in millions)

31 FiDrDcial Instruments- Falr v.lues and rlsk managcmeDt (continued)

FiD.ndal dak marageircnt
The Company's a.tivities expose it to a variety offinancialrisk: credit risk liquidity risk and market risk

i) f,lsk m.naSemant fi'amework

The Company,s board of directors ('the Board'l has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the nsk managem€nt fram€work

Th€y oversee how man.gemenr monitors compliance with the risk management policies and procedur€s, and reviews the adequacy of t}le risk

management frameworkln relation to the risks faced by th€ Company. The Board is assisted in its oversight rol€ by intemal audit lnternal audit

undeiakes both regularandad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the rtsults ofwhich are reponed to the Board

ii) Credlt rlsk
creditrisk is the risk tiar rhe counrerparg wiu not meet its obligauon und€r a linancial instrument or customercontmc! leadingto financialloss.

The credit risk arises principallyfrom its operating activities (prirharily trade .eceivabtes) and from irs investing achvities, including depositswith

bank and linancial institutions ahd other fi nancial insEuments.

Credit risk is controlled by analysinS credit lamits and cr€ditworthin€ss ofcustomers on a continuous b.sis !o whom aedit has been Elranted after

obtaining necessary appr;vab tlrcredirrhe cotleaion from the trade receivablesare monitored on a continuous basis by the receivables team.

Particulars 31 march
2024

3l march
2023

18.82 16.45

1a.a2 16.45

Impalrment analysis

The ageing of trad€ receivables is as

The rt allowancefor credit the year was as tbllows:

As at
3 t Mrrch

2021
3l March

2023

Less than I year

1-2 years

2-3 years

3

16.11

2.70

16.45

,8,41 16.4S

Allowance for 6T€dit loss
31 March

202+

31 March

zozS

Balance atlhebeginning
Provision creat€d during the year

lm

r22

Balanceatthe end 1.22

No single cusromer accounred for more than 10% ofthe revenue. There is no siSnificantconcentration olcr€dit risk

Cr€dit;iskon cash and cash equivatent and other bank balanles is limited as the Company 8enerally transacLs with banksand financial institutions

with high credit ratings assigned by domestic credit ratingagencies

ltlce
N c

eC Ac



iii) Liquidlty rlsk
Liquidity riskis rhe riskrhatthe Company willencounter diffculty in meering the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled

by deiivering cash or a nother financial asse! The Company's approach to managihg liquidily is toeosure,as far as Possible, rhat it will always have

sufticient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, uder both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking

damage to the company's reputation.

The C;mpany beti€ves that the workingcapital is sumcient to meet its currenl requirements. Accordingly, no liquidity risk is Perceived.

The Companybelieves thatthe working capital is sumcientto meet its current requiremen6. Accordingly, no liquidity risk is perceived Thetable

betow provides details regard ing rhe undiscounted contractua I maturities ofsignificant financial liabilities as of31st March 2024

The table below provides details regarding rhe undiscounted contractual maturities ofsignificant financial liabilitjes

as of 31 March 2024

Particulars
More than I

Total

Trade payables

Borrowings #

L€ase liabilities

Other ff nancial liabilities

2.1S

55.73

3.69

0.13

83.19

56.09

2.15

138 92

s9.74

0.13

Particulars Payable

wlthin 1
More than 1

year
Total

Trade payables

BorrowinBs *
Lease liabilities

Other li nancial liabilities

2.96

63_25

1.91

2.96

99.12

50 65

The tabte b€tow provides derails regarding the undiscounted contra.tual maturiues ofsignificanl financial liabilities

as of31 March 2023

# Repres€nlJ borrowings (short term and long tErm) and current maturities of long term borrowings included in

oth€r current fi nancial liabilities.

Flnandal lnstnrments- fdr values ald t13k manasemcnt (condnued)

Irler*.t r$k
Market risk is the risk tbat the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument $dll fluctuate because of .hanges in mark€t prices, such as

foreignexchange rates, interest rates and equiry prices.

Foreigr drrrency risk
The Company is exposed to curr€ncy risk to th€ €xtent that th€re is a mismat h beMeen the cun€rci€s in which Eansactions are denominated and

Oe nrncdonit currency of th€ Coinpany. The tunctional currency of the Company is INR and lhe Company does not hrve any material foreiSn

currency transactions duringthc years endcd 30 rune 2021,31 March 2021,31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019

cash flow ald f.lr v.lu. lnterest
rate rlsk
Th€ Company,s main interest rat€ rilk arises from long-term and short-term borrowings with variable rates, which expose the Company to cash

flow inte;est rate risk The interest rate on the Company's financial insrruments is based on market rates. ?he Company monitors the movem€ht in

interest rates on an ongoing basis.

(a) lnterest rate risk cxposure

iv)

Sensi

Particulars Impact on profit or 0oss) lmpacton other
components ofequily

3l March

2024

lls at
3l March

2023
3l March

2024

3l March
2023

l% increase in variable rate

l% decrease in variable rate

{0.17)
0_1'l

t440)
4.40

The inrerest rate sensitivity is based on the closing balanc€ ofvariabl€ rate borrowings from banks and financial institutions.

As at
31 March

As at
3l March)

Financial liabilities (bank

77.49Variable rare long term borowings

ss.ez

44.74

]Ultl]3O
fc
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Kuttuk..r Ca Pri!.r. [imit.d, Ko<hi- 25

Notesro thc financial statements (.ontinued)

J2 Employ.. bcndlt
a D.fr.d .orrlDodofl pr.

TIc compary malca conEibulioff, dclermincd specifi.d pecntasE of edployecs $lei.s,h Esp.ct of qu.[rym8

.lqlqc.s to{/uds r.wi&rl fied ed o(hd fEds wtich e d.tu.d conmtstloo pltls.In ohpdy hB N oblilri6
odrd rhs 10 matc 3p.cifi.d cohnibliiods.Th. contrihdons .r. cbn8 d to lhe st I.,6t of proft tnd loss as th.y accau€.

B D.tt[.d B.n tlt P!..
Th. @Epey op.racs c.n in poc.+Dplorct &fiocd bd.ft da phicl is Fovid.d f6 bss.d 6 .tDnd !.l!nir
crricd od ty ar ild.Fnd.rt .crDay using dE psj.cl.d Eil cEdn Bcthod. Tt. coopEly acctu6 grnufty a F th.
prDvisins ofrtc P3ym. ofcraNity Ac!1972(C.!iuity Ad).

Ba!.d n e rdunid ralurion otdio.d b lhis Es?6ct. followinS lablc sls qx tb. $atus ot th. ba.& Plo ald ih.
rll@nc Bo8!is.d i! Sc corycys rad.lo.ftreid sd.s5rts a. a brlec. si..l ddc.

Jlir Mrrcn 2024 .lt Mlrch 202.1

N.r lr.llned te!.fl lhblllty/(tuiet)
Liability for coq.is.tcd .boc
Totrl .mploy.e D.mfi lhbilty / {tul.t)
No-<Il,ur &fi&d betr.fit liability

Ca6t d.tmd hencfit liab tiy

0.53

0.65

(0.r2)

0- l7

0.0J

0_ t3

0.04

0.07

0.05

0.02

(AI douts in INR milions)

C Rfto.cuirlion of nel deflntd b.nefil (.ste8ylitbllio

i)Pccorciliation of pee \dt,.s otd.fa.d beneh obticalion

bale.es rG n.r defo.d b.trcfil

' o, ..cMr of b{d!6 comblmdoll d lrl.. trdp lrrcfet

ll'l Mrrcn Z0Z ll nhrcb 202.1

OFd[t frlr vdm ofpllr ll..tt
CooEibrtiMs paid hro thc plan

- ctrtu8.s in d.e8 lphic.sf,rptiN

Ass.r disnt t d d $tLlmls

0.45

0.02

0_0t

0.17

aDl.nc. rt the e.d of the I err
ttotemnt in As*l CeilhB
- Opening Valu.of.As*l CcinnS

- Chanse in Ass.r (.ilin8

B,l,n.o.r rh. €nd of rhc rer

\€r d.lin.rl h.nefii lirhililr / i.t*ll (0.r2)

3kr M.rcb 2024 It M.r.t 2021

O!.{ing of d.fincd bdEfir obligiid

A(r[slrl Gin (los.) r6sri.cd i, olhd coqd.alivc ilt.lr
{haS.! h fnecirl es$Eption!

{tESE3 i! qFi,e ov.r fi. p.!a Fin
B.a.fits paid

Lnbilni(. .3a|,!.d(i.dhd)'
Lirbitti.r qiinilili.d on s.ltlcoals

0.25

0.t5

001

(0.01)

(0.01)

0. t?

Delined bercflt oollsltlon.s rt th"end ofthe yerr 0.5-1

s

d

e

llt a*.

\\ Pi rc

)



^l Emplot.. b.Ent' (contlnrcd)

ii) Re.ot.ilianq ofpt k"t tnlu. ofphr as.B

ll$ M.rcb 204 3l Mrrti 2023

N.r hrftsi 6 r.r &fued lirbility

0.t5

(0.01)

0,t{

D f,$.$a rc.ot.b.d ln the rti Llom (.t.meDt ofp.onr.nd lcr

iReprcs.nts ctarges s as$mDlion when co'nparcd lo rcl@al valuation Bpoa for:i0/9/l02ll

-1tst Uft.h !024 llsl }hrct 2013

Fuods M.red bv Lifc lnsumc. CorpoBtio ofl E

.tln tl.r(h 202-1

(xrl.t rt b4lnning ofti. y..r
Acturial (sain)/ loss otr defD.d bo.r obh8 tidr
Cha8.s in toanchl aslrr{iids
Chds6 in &oosraplic &snprids

Rerun d pla 6s.r.icludus ilt.res bcom.
Adiusrne to Eolnia th..tr cl of arl.t c.ilina

(0.03)

(0.02)

Clci.s lmq reco{niz.d i. OCI (0,05)

f D.6..d a.rni Odltdor

(t) A.iI.r!l Asn0dE

Tt folk ing r.ltc FiDcip.l6t5i.l cxltlpttc i lic r! aTirS di. (a!.66.d .3 s.ieht d av..4.):

ll$ Y.rcn 2024 llrt M.rch 2023

wtid'ted .!er.,l. d!Br@ ofd.fincd b.nciit

1.2W.

6.0096

Tt wcitht d awl"g. GssBtrioos uscd lo da€rEine tlct periodi. bcnefit coi 6 El ou belo*:

al AsrpriN Eg.rdrrS frrrc trslalit, ctpcn{.e et sl ir e6lbE *idt lt€ eeds.d lsbk ' IALM 2012-ll

lutirutc). Th. CoDpaly.ss.secs lhcsc assumptio!5 sit ils prcic.-ted lonS-lcm plans ofsrd'ih a Fwalcd rr&.try

sadddr Tt dis.ouit ..r. is b6!.d d Ftv.iling matd ytcl.ls of sovdrtn suiti6

b) Crltllity is rpliobL oV to qn0loy..s who hw. @oplct d fivc,easotsdie &d6 Dga$Ltyb l.di.D flP.cs

Ed lhd. a! m o&d forcig! d.fo.d b.o.fil Stituity pLn!

(ii) S.sirlrltl rnaltrir

Rasd.bly DodsibL cbmg6 a $. rcporthg da. ro on. of th. adrid aghptr(E holdrg othd agmPaims cfirdl.
wold hav. afrc.l.d th. d.fitrcd b.Eln obliSrtior by dt. dMts shwn belowl

Al$oqi rt aElysis &cs lcn t't srulofihc tull distiboliB of l!.6l llds.xFcrcd @d.r the pla, n.kE
6ovi& sn.rnoxiMliq of lt s..snivtn oftt asnldr id slDwE

ln as.csinS th. l@llrability / iDpoirnol ofr.ccit?bLr inlrasibl. .s!.rs. ad olhs a&alccs whrch 3t dlldrodhg 6
@ th. &r. of adoc. Sh.a. tnc Corydy ha! .orlsiLEd irlall ard c,Gm.l infl,'Mlioo uP to dtc darc of tpptolrl of

&e tuac'al 6lrl.'Ets includrne dldil crotis .nd cmonic fqsss B$.d d cu,El i.drators of tutult .c6ooi'
oditiods. tllc Cospsry .ip..ls lo rc.oE lh. clrfying anoul of !hd. a!sd!. runtd' tlt. Compmv docs ,ol &ticap'c

oy ldditid.l li&iliriG tne *h, is di!.lo6.d in ltE B.la.t St ct r+ to rb..ltt of qprovel of lb.s foaci'l
sar.lmts. Th. amp6cr of drc globol hc.[[ prrld.lric tn y b. diffdan ftoE fiat *nElld 6 al fie &le of 4proval of

thcs. trrscill r.$iB ad d!. Coqcny sill cdrtiou. lo clos.lv moon(r 8v ltdsi.l chqEs lo njtuE ..6omic

.tlsl $.rcn 202:l ll itrrcn 2021

-2.13%

2.E9%

2.87vo

-2.14%

Discour ld. (0.5% mov.nml)

funr . $hry suq,th (0-5%

I

/,,'s .3
(



^ Kuttulo..n Cffs Pritrt€ Llmlted. Kochi - 25

Aomrurc Vl - Nol€s to Rertit€d Finrnclrl Informrtion

(Allamounls in lndian mpees million)

llsrch 3I.2024 }llrch 3t. 2013

Currcnl tiabilities

Itrlio

% Chanse from DrEvious ycar

91.26

68.7.{

l.3l
46.8oto

71.88

'79.46

0.90

33 S.gttrcnt r.portlog

The Company is engaged in rhe bu.siness ofpurchasc and sale ofvehicles and relaled s€rviccs. The srtire op€ntions are orSnniscd and naiagpd as otte

organisational unil wilh th. samc ser ofrists and rtturni. h€nce lhc same hrs been consideEd as rcprrsenting a siogle lrimary ssgrnetu. The

ComFny rEnders irs services in lndia only and does not hrve any oFmlions in economic environments with difierent risks and retums; hence it is

considcrcd op€rarinS in a singlc g€ogiaphic segment. Accordingly. no segmenl dis.losure has b.tn nade in ftese financial st lemmt!.

.14 Rctios rs p.r the Schedule lll requlrements

I Cunenl Rario = ( urenl Assets dirided Cunenl l-iabiliri€s

l!rrch ll. 2024 March 31. 1023

Total dcbt

Tolal cquity

R tio

7. Chrnge iom prcvious ylar

r38.92

(18.8t )
(7.39)

4.5./o

99_ l2
(7.99)

(12.41)

Rlllon fm ch.mc morc th.n 257.

Tie ntio reduced on accounl ofaccumulaled losses incrcas€ in the nesali!. equily

Rerson for chrnse morc tha. 257.

Ih€ Rario improled on accourl ofa repalmenl ofloan and fiEsh ad\ance gr\en k, pnncipols.

2 Debr r"tio = loral d€br dirid€d Tolal \^here rotal deh refeN to sum ofcurrenl & non cune bonowi

3 hr Senice C Ralio BII lnlerEst Cosr '

R{tio / Return on lnr$tm€nl Ratio = Nci

5 Rcturn on irgr t for6 interert and t res{f,BlT) ditid€d bt Crplt l

furson for chrrqe Inore lhrn 2570

th€ incrEas.d Capibl employed is olTs€l by increased rcvenue coupl€d *'th impro\ed Gross margin driven bv nse in OEM

q!!c

9tt

\,l.r.h 3l.2ll!3Mrrch 31.20!4
1.76

'7.76

99.t2

0.07

13.21

t 5_90

138.92

0.09

IE.I%

EBITDA

lnl€{.sr Cost

Borrowings

Deb( S.rvicc Cov.rq€ Rrtlo

% Chanse fiom Fevious y.ar

l\lrrrh ll,2023Mrrch 31. 2024

(J.33)

(7.99)

0.54

( r0.86)

( 18.81)

0.58

Nct Profir eftcr r.x
Tolal eqlity

Ratio

% Chen*c liom qtvious ),Ear

Iorrh I l. 2023Mlrch.ll.202.t
t.6l

t56.t3

79.46

'76.61

0.02

1.83

189.87

68.14

l2t.t2
0.02

-28-l'/o

FRtI

Tolal Asset [a)

CunEnt Uability [b]

Capltsl f,nDloy.d lrl-lbl
Ratio

9/o Chance 6'om prEvious ycar

UK

t\,

?r1



6 Trrd€ Receivable lncome/l rade Rec€i\ ahlc

Turnoler Rltio = Cost of mllerials consrmed d it ided

l0 \et Srles

urrch ll. 2024 llarch -il. 2023

Totl Incomc

Trade Receivable

Trrde Recclvrble Turnovcr Rallo

% ChanSe liom prElious )€ar €nd

608.87

17.5S

34.61

4t.956/.

4{n.91

16.44

24.38

\larch ll. 202.{ Msrch J1.202f,

Purchase of Srocft ifl t"d€
Trade Pa)able

Trrd€ P.y.bl€ Turnotcr Rrtio

% Change from previous )€ar eid

530.22

2.t5

246.80

82.05"/.

401.1 I

2.96

85.57

\Irrch 31. 102.1 \tlrch -11. 202.1

Total incornc

Cunenl Assel [a]

Current Uability [b]
N€t WorLiog Crpdrl l.l-lbl
Ratio
o/o Chanee from p(cvious year

608.87

9t.26

6&.74

22.52

27.04

-l5l.l37o

400.93

71.88

'19.46

(7.58)

(52.89)

Ra.son for chrnq€ mote lhrn 25'Z

There has b€en an overall imporvemenl in lhe net working capital

\tar.h lt. :02:l Ycrch 11.2023

Purchss€ ofstock in trade [a]

Changes in inve ories ofstocl-in-Eadc [b]

Cdr of Mr.rt.l Coo.lled lrl+lbl
Clding Inrcntory

Ratio
o/o Chancp from prtvious !!ar

530.22

t1.74

547 _96

14.42

38.0r

)57.250h

401.1 I

(10.53)

370.58

44.58

8.lt

Rarlon for chsnqe more thrr 23'l.

The major ponion ofthc tr.de receiv.ble reprEscnl OEM rcaei\able . rh€re has b€en Ean€odous improveme h dlc collection and scltlemcnl fiom

lhe OEM, rhrr€by inprovin8 lhc ratio.

7 Tride of srak ln t d€/'I'rrde

R!.ror tor .hrnr. mrc th.[ 2!i7.

There has b€cn good improvement in rhe inventory manag€meni syslem resuhing in a draslic control over the inventory leveh which ultimat€ l€l lo

controUcd purchases and dcblor paymcnl rhanagemerlt s),slcm.

8 Ner cspitd Turnov.r Rltto = Total hcomr dlvlded by Net Working crpitrl wherers net *orklogc.Pit.l= current !!s.ts - cu.rent lisbllitles

Rarroo for chrrtc nror. lh&t 25tl.

ThcrE hes b.en good imponrocnt in lh€ inve:l ory manaSerllent qsrear resullrng in a dnstic contol owr the inventory levels which ultimalc l€t lo

co iollcd purchases.

March 31.20r.r )llrch -11.2023

Ncr Pmfit aner tax

R tio

% ChanrF fron DrEvious 

'tar

(r0.86)

605.70

(0.02)

6.Wo

(4.31)

400.64

(0.01)

R!.ron lor chincc lmrc lhr. 25rl.
tnloduction of fcw n.lr modets by th€ OEM with lower mar8ins rEsuh€d in lowering lhe ol€llll markup.Thcre has b€€n incrE"!€ in lhc fix€d

€xpens.s including inl€rEst de?r€cttion end cmpioltc cost.

tl. P r,:
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Kuttukaran Cars Privste Limited

(All amounts in Indian rupees million)

36 Crpitsl Manegem€nt

The Company's policy is to maintain a stable capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to

sustain future deyelopment ofthe business. Management monitors capital on the basis ofretum on capital employed as well

as the debt to total equity ratio. For the purpose ofdebt to total equity ratio, debt considered is long-tenn and shon-term

borrowings. Total equity comprise ofissued share capital and other equiry.

Particulars As at

31 March 2024

As at

31 Mrrch 2023

Total equity attributable to the equity shareholders of
the company

As a percentage of totd cepitol

Long - term borrowings

Short - term borrowings

Total Borrowings

As a percentrge of total capitd
Total capital (Equity and borrowings)

(18.8r)

0"h

83. l9
55.'73

t38.92

to00/o

120.1 I

(7 .e9)

|Yo

3 5.87

63.25

99.12

100%

91.13

for and on behalfof the Board ofDirectors of
Kuttukaran Cars PriYste Limited

CIN : U50400KL201 c019442

it
John K paul

Director

DIN:00016513

Director

DIN:00018E27

Navcen

\\

(;

icA

v9tivytvl{

lul tc
t/vuvlnllnt

VC

o

xsg -

37 Previous Year figures are regrouped wherever found necessary.
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